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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Maithan Ferrous Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Maithan Ferrous Private Limited (the “Company™), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025 ,the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the
Financial Statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information. (hereinafter
referred to as the “Financial Statements™).

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Financial
Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act™) in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act (“IND AS”) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, profit, changes
in equity and other comprehensive income and the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SA”s) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
Jor the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the relevant provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Financial Statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, but does not include the Financial Statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.




If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the

preparation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, changes in equity*and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management and Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability

/ «) to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis

#  of accounting unless. Board of Directors éither intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no reahstlc
altelnatlvs but to do so,

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accorddnce with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the ba51s of these
Financial Statements. ‘

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error,

7 design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and

= appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 2 material misstatement resulting from

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances.

. ‘Bvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accountmg estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on

- the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to niodify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. Howevel future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.




. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the disclosures,
‘and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable
that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our
work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As reqﬁired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), and the Statement of
Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid ‘Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2025 taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 Mareh, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an

unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with - .

reference to Financial Statements.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of section

197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given

-to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 of the Act.

(h) With respect to the other mattets to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given tous:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would inipact,its financial poéition;

ii. The Company did not have anly long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses;

O\S‘Gy 10 \\There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to th¢ Investor Education and Protection Fund by the

gﬂ@ompany during the year ended 31 March 2025.



iv.

vi.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes
to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds). by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understandmg, whether recorded in writing ot otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
ot on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneﬁmanes ) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; ' '

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by
the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly ot indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiarie$™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on, behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing
has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the Management representations under sub-clauses (a) and
(b) above, contain any material misstatement.

The Board of Directors of the Company has prdposed preference dividend for the year ended, which is subject to the
approval of the Memebrs at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The amount of preference dividend proposed is in

accordance with Section 123 of the Act as applicable.

Based on our exaniination, Wh1ch 1nc1uded test checks, the Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining
its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the softwares. Further,
during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with and
the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For M Choudhury& Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302186E

s hamm MWL«.}\&

Shubham Jhunjhunwala
Partrer .

Membership No. 319037
UDIN: 25319037BMIABO2513

Place: Kolkata

Date: 26% May 2025



Annexure A to Independent Auditor's Report
Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the members of MAITHAN
FERROUS PRIVATE LIMITED on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025.

fii. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

N records of the Company, during the year, the Company has not made investment in or provided any

guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.

iv.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not entered into any
transaction of loans, investments, guarantees and security which require the compliance with provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

v.  The Company haé not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the
Act and the rules framed there under. Therefore, the provision of clause 3(v) of the order is not apphcable
on the Company.

vi.  The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)
, } of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company. Thetefore, the provision of clause 3(vi)
L of the order is not applicable on the Company.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company examlned by
us, in our opinion the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including Goods
and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues, as applicable, to the appropriate
authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of the aforesaid dues were outstanding as at 31st March 2025 for a period of more than six months
from the date they become payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by
us, there are no dues of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess ‘and other statutory dues
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

viil.  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us,

there are no transactions in the books of account that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during

) the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of
account.

ix. (a)According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest
to any lender during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we
report that the Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not taken any term loans from any lender. Accordingly,
reporting under Clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. ’




Annexure A to Independent Auditor's Report
Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our report to the members of MAITHAN
FERROUS PRIVATE LIMITED on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025. .

s
'

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, and procedures performed by us, we report
that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies and hence the
reporting under clause ix (e) are not applicable.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us, and procedures performed by us, we report
that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies and hence the
reporting under clause ix (f) are not applicable.

X. (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has made a private placement of non-convertible preference shares which are redeemable
‘ at par during the year. In our opinion the fequirements of Section 42/section 62 of the Companies Act
j\ﬁ 2013, have been complied with and the funds raised have been used for the purposes for which the funds
- were raised. '

xi. (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations
given to us, we have neither come across any-instance of material fraud by the Company or on the
Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the
Management. ‘

(b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations
given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required to be filed with the Central Government.
Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no whistle blower complaints
> received during the year by the Company.

xii, As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the reporting
under Clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company
has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of section 177 and 188
of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable Indian accounting standards. o

xiv. In respect of matters specified in clause (xiv) of the Order:

(a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate
with the size and nature of its business.

(b) The internal audit reports of the company issued till date of the audit report, for the period under audit
have been considered by us.




Annexure A to Independent Auditor's Report
Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the members of MAITHAN
FERROUS PRIVATE LIMITED on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025.

xv. In-our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered

' into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, reporting
on compliance with the provisions of Section 192 of the Act under Clause 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-TA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
'1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b)According to the information & explanétion’given to us and.the records of the Company examined by

. us, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a
valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

(c) According to the information & explanation given to us and the records of the Company examined by
jﬁ us, the company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. ) ’

(d) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

xvii. According to the information & explanation given to us and the records of the Company examined by us,
the company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and immediately preceding
financial year.

xviil. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by
us, there has not been any resignation of the statutory-auditors during the year and accordingly the
reporting under clause (xviii) is not applicable.

Xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios (Also
refer Note 45 to the financial statements), ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge
of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due,

xx. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is not applicable to the cotnpany and hence reporting under this
Clause is not applicable.




Annexure A to Independent Auditor's Report
Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our report to the members of MAITHAN
FERROUS PRIVATE LIMITED on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025.

xxi. The reporting under Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of financial
statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this report.

For M Choudhury& Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302186E

Shubham Jhunjhunwala '
Partner

Membership No. 319037

UDIN: 25319037BMIABO2513

Place: Kolkata
Date: 26" May 2025



ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MAITHAN FERROUS PRIVATE LIMITED

Reporf on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements of Maithan
Ferrous Private Limited (“the Private Company”) as at 31 March, 2025, in conjunction with our audit of
the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to Financial Statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(“ICAI”).These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and-errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Anuditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Qver Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and both issued by the ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. ‘

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our

) audit of internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to the Financial
Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements is a process designed to
_ provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
. Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
»@fcm{pany's internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements includes those policies and
prgtedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
ﬂéé,t the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;(2)provide reasonable assurance that
?ﬁ’ﬁ‘z}ptions -are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with
&

t
>



Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor's Report
(Referred to under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” in
Paragraph of our Independent Auditors’ report of even date)

generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being
made only in accordance with authorisation of the management and directors of the Company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management, override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
ICAL T

For M Choudhury & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302186E

s bane UM Namesoda,
Shubham Jhunjhunwala
Partner
Membership No. 319037
UDIN: 25319037BMIABO2513

Place: Kolkata
Date: 26% May 2025



MAITHAN FERROUS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN NO: U27300WB2019PTC235113
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Notes As At 31 March As At 31 March 2024
2025
ASSETS
-1(1) Non-current assets
(a) Propertty, Plant and Equipment 4 8,483.43 377.68
(b) Capital Work in Progress 5 122.45 5,494.80 |
(c) Financial Assets
(i) Other Financial Assets . 6 - 018 0.18
(d) Non Current Tax Assets (Net) 7 152.23 -
(&) Other Non-Current Assets 8 13.45 131.76
"|Total Non-Current Assets 8,771.74 6,004.42
(2) Current Assets. -
(a) Inventories 9 2,802.79 -
{(b) Financial Assets ;
(i), Trade Receivables 10 43.30 -
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents - 9.85 230.29
(iiiy Other Bank Balances (other than (i) above) 12 - - 8.84
(iv) Other Financial Assets 13 - 0.46 |
{c) Other Current Assets 14 759.57 1,018:10
Y Total Current Assets 3,615.51 1,257.69
}’“ Total Assets -12,387.25 7,262.11
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity ‘
(a) Equity Share Capital 15 500.00 500.00
(b) Other Equity 16 4,011.79 (29.35)
Total Equity 4,511.79 | 470.65
Liabilities ‘
(1) Non-Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities - ‘
(i) Borrowings . 17 4,251.99 6,500.00
(b} Provisions. 18 6.83 -
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 19 301.57 ' 3.64
Total Non-Current Liabilities 4,560.39 6,503.64
(2) Current liabilities
(a)  Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings ' 20 1,489.63 -
(iiy Trade Payables : 21
) -Trade Payable (outstanding to micro and small 99.23
enterprises) : )
-Trade Payable (outstanding to other than micro
and small enterprises) 1,517.58 | 1.50
. (b) (iii) Other Financial Liabilities 22 71.29 278.32
\ (c) Provisions 23 | 0.18 -
(d)  Other Current Liabilities ' 24 12.02 2.10
(e) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 25 125.14 5.90°
Total Current Liabilities 3,315.07 287.82
Total Liabilities 7,875.46 6,791.46 |
Total Equity and Liabilities 12,387.256 7,262.11

The accompanying notes 1 to 49 are an integral part of the financial statements.

in terms of our report attached
For and on behalf of the Board of Dir

.

For M Choudhury & Co. S.C.
Chartered Accountants
~ FRN.: 302186E .

Shubham Jhunjhunwala
Partner .
Membership No.: 319037

Subodh Aga!

Director
DIN: 00088384

ARTAR NPT SN

Aditya Mishra
Director & CEO
DIN: 01930178

~ DIN: 00339855

Pramod Kumar Chaudhary

Manisha Kumari
Company Secretary

Place: Kolkata
Date: 26-05-2025



MAITHAN FERROUS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN NO: U27300WB2019PTC235113

Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year Ended 31 March 2025

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Notes Year Ended 31 Year Ended 31
S March 2025 March 2024
Income o
Revenue from operations 26 14,734.82 5.43
Other Income 27 9.80 108,72
Total Income 14,744.62 114.15
Expenses i .
|Cost of material consumed 28 9,711.65 | -
Purchase of Traded Goods 29 17.98 4.56
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in- 30 (987.30) )
progress
Employee Benefits Expenses 31 ~ 166.14 7.43
{Power cost 32 4,255.32 -
Finance cost 33 192.38 40.41
Depreciation and amortisation Expenses 34 263.49 5.59
Other Expenses 35 476.46 24.95
Total Expenses 14,096.12 82.94
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 648.50 31.21 |
Tax Expenseé
(a) Current Tax 37 162.23 | 17.77
(b) MAT Credit Entitlement 37 (152.23) -
(c) Deferred Tax 37 297.93 13,44
(d) Income Tax for Earlier Year (3.19) -
Total Tax Expenses 294.74 31.21
Profit/(Loss) for the year (A) 353.76 0.00
Other Comprehensive Income
A (i) tems that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss
- Re-measurements of the Net Defined Benefit Plans - -
» (i) Income tax relating to above-items - -
.|Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the
year (B) ) )
i
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (A+B) 353.76 0.00
‘Earnings Per Share
(1) Basic (in Rs.) 36 7.08 0.00
(2) Diluted (in Rs.) 36 7.08 0.00

The accompanying notés 1 to 49 are an integral part of the(financial statements..,

in terms of our report attached

For M Choudhury & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN.: 302186E

SHabhana TL“:V Lt

Shubham Jhunjhunwala
Partner
Membership No.: 319037

Place: Kolkata
Date: 26-05-2025

_For and on behalf of the Board of Di

S. C{Agarwalia
Director
\D[N: 0QO‘88384

Aditya Mishra

Director & CEQ J

DIN: 01930178

rwalla
irector
DIN: 00339855

Subodh/Ag

Pramod Kumar
Chaudhary
CFO

Manisha Kumari
Company Secretary
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MAITHAN FERROUS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN NO: U27300WB2019PTC235113
Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31 March 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Year Ended 31 March |Year Ended 31 March
2025 2024
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax 648.50 31.21
Adjusted for :
Less; Interest Income 4.80 108.73
L.oss/(Gain) on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment & Capital work in Progress - 3.10
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 263.49 5.59
Finance Cost 192.38 40.41
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 1,099.57 (34.62)
Adjusted for Increase or Decrease in Operating Assets: ‘
Decrease / (Increase) in Inventories (2,802.79) -
Decrease / (Increase) Trade Receivables (43.30) -
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Current Assets 258.53 (1,004.85)
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Non Current Assets 118.31 (131.76)
Adjusted for Increase or Decrease in Operating Liabilities:
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payable 1,615.31 1.36
Increase / (Decrease) in Current Liabilities 9.92 2.10
Increase / (Decrease) in Current Financial Liabilities (207.03) 277.13
Increase/ (Decrease) in Provisions 7.01 -
55.53 (890.64)
Cash Generated from Operations 55.53 | (890.64)
Income Tax Paid (29.80) (11.86)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) 25.73 (902.50)
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
' Expenditure on Property, Plant and Equipment & Capital Work in progress (2,996.89) (5,776.15)
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment - 181.73
Interest Received 5.26 108.67
Investment in fixed deposit 8.84 3,000.06
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) (2,982.79) (2,485.69)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issue of Prefrence Shares 1,277.19 2,500.00
Preference Dividend - (40.41)
Interest Paid (30.20) -
Net Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings 1,489.63 -
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) 2,736.62 2,459.59
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (220.44)} (928.60)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 230.29 1,158.89
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the period 9.85 230.29

Note: The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Indian Accounting.

The accompanying notes 1 to 49 are an integral part of the financial statements.
Interms of our report attached

For M Choudhury & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN.: 302186E

Shubham Jhunjhunwala

Partner
Membership No.:319037

Place: Kolkata
Date: 26-05-2025

S. C. Agarwalla
Director
DIN: 00088384

ARLEVIR VT
Aditya Mishra -
Director & CEO
DIN: 01930178

For and on behalf of the Board of,D

ireeft
SUF

garwalla
\ Director
DIN: 00339855

@//,X

[

Subadh

Pramod Kumar Chaudhary

CFO

Manisha Kumari
Comparny Secretary




MAITHAN FERROUS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN NO: U27300WB2019PTC235113
Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 March 2025

a. Equity Share Capital
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Note Amount

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid

As At 1 April 2023 ‘ 15 500.00

Issue of share capital -

As At 31 March 2024 500.00

Issue of share capital -

As At 31 Mar 2025 500.00

b. Other Equity

Particulars Equity Component of Retained Earnings Total

Preference share :

As At 1 April 2023 - (29.35) (29.35)

Profit/(Loss) for the year (A) - 0.00 0.00

Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - -

Equity Component of Preference share - - -

‘As At 31 March 2024 - (29.35) (29.35)

A\2rofiti(Loss) for the year (A) - 358.76 353.76

. {Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - - -

Equity Component of Preference share ' 3,687.38 - 3,687.38

As At 31 Mar 2025 3,687.38 324.41 4,011.79

The accompanying riotes 1 to 49 are an integral part of the financial statements.
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Djrector

For M Choudhury & Co. , S. C. Adzarwalla Subodh,
Chartered Accountants Director - (
FRN.: 302186E DIN: 00088384 DINT00339855

Shubham Jhunjhunwala
Partner
Membership No.: 319037

Aditya Mishra  Pramod Kumar Chaudhary
Director & CEO CFO

DIN: 01930178 M

Place: Kolkata Manisha Kumari
‘ )@ate:26-05-2025 Company Secretary




MAITHAN FERROUS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Corporate Information

Maithan Ferrous Private Limited (the 'Company') was incorporated on 05 December, 2019 for
export, import, produce, process, sell, buy, distribute and deal in metal and/or minerals.

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

Statement of Compliance

These (‘financial statements’) of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read
with Rule 4A of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards),as amended, and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the
Act"). The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial
statements.

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis and at historical cost and on
accrual method of accounting, except for certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at
fair value/ amortised cost. {Refer note 3(e) below)..

Historical cost is based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services
at the time of their acquisition.

Use of Estimates and Judgment

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of these financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses for the years presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different
assumptions and conditions.

Estimates and underlying assumptions ére reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected.

The Company use the following critical accounting judgement, estimates and assumption in
preparation of its financial statements are disclosed in note 3.

Functional Currency and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupees (%) which is the functional currency of the
company and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the company operates and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand, utpo 2 decimal places except as otherwise indicated.

Current and Non-Current Classification




MAITHAN FERROUS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

All assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating
cycle (twelve months) and other criteria set out in the schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind
AS 1 —‘Presentation of Financial Statements’.

All assets and liabilities are classified as current when it is expected to be realized or settled within the
Company's normal operating cycle, i.e. twelve months. All other assets and liabilities are classified as
non- current.

Certain comparative figures appearing in these financial statements have been regrouped and/ or
reclassified to better reflect the nature of those items.

‘Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current ohly.

Material Accounting Policies

v Property, Plant and Equipments

Property, p‘lént and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition, installation or construction less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, except freehold land which is stated at cost
less impairment losses if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, and any cost directly
attributable to bringing the asset to working condition and location for its intended use. It also includes
the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which
it is located. Stores and spare parts are capitalised when they meet the definition of property, plant
and equipment. The corresponding old spares are decapitalised on such date with consequent impact
in the statement of profit & loss.

Subsequent expenditures on major maintenance or repairs includes the cost of the replacement of
parts of assets and overhaul costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance
expenditure are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses
are incurred.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful life, then they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Likewise,
expenditure towards major inspections and overhauls are identified as a separate component and
depreciated over the expected period till the next overhaul expenditure.

An item of PPE is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected.to
arise from the continued use of the assets. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of PPE, is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, and is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Major inspection and overhaul
_expenditure is capitalized, if the recognition criteria are met.
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MAITHAN FERROUS PRlVATE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Capital work in progress comprises expenditure for acquisition and construction of tangible assets that
are not yet ready for their intended use. Costs, net of income, associated with the commissioning of
the asset are capitalized until the period of commissioning has been completed and the asset is ready
for its intended use. At the point when the asset is capable of operating in the manner intended by
the management, the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment. Such items are classified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for their intended use.. Advances given towards
acquisition/construction of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date are
disclosed as Capital Advances under “Other non-current assets”.

Depreciation ,
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line method (SLM).

Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. Depreciated assets and
accumulated depreciation amounts are retained fully until they are removed/retired from active use.
Depreciation is provided to allocate the costs of property, plant and equipment, net of their residual

values, over their useful life as specified in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

The assets residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed during each financial year and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. In
respect of an asset for which impairment loss is recognized, deprecuatlon is provided on the revised
carrymg amount of the assets over its remaining useful life.

Impairment of Non- Financial Assets

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period the carrying amounts of non-
financial assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, then an impairment review is undertaken
and an impairment loss, if any, is recognized in the statement of profit and loss wherever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and the asset's value in use. In case, where
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual non-financial asset, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount for the smallest cash generating unit to which
the non-financial asset belongs.

Fair value less costs of disposal is the price that would be received to sell the asset in an ordefly
transaction between market participants and does not reflect the effect of factors that may be specific
to the entity and not applicable to entities in general. Value in use is determined as the present value
of the estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continued use of the asset in its present
form and its eventual disposal. ‘

Impairment charges and reversals are assessed at the level of cash-generating unit (CGU). A cash-
generating unit (CGU) is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets.




MAITHAN FERROUS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

A cash generating unit is treated as impaired when the carrying amount of the assets or cash
generating unit excéeds its recoverable value. An impairmentloss is charged to the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period in which asset or cash generating unit is identified as impaired.

Impairment loss recognised in prior accoUnting period(s) is reversed when there is an
indication that the impairment losses recognised no longer exist or have decreased. However,
the carrying value after reversal is not increased beyond the carrying value that would have
prevailed by chargmg usual depreciation, if there was no impairment. Post impairment,
depreciation is provided on the revised carrying value of the impaired asset over its remaining
useful life. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of
Profit and Loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in WhICh case the
reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Foreign Currency Translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates that
approximates the rate as at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in forelgn currencies outstanding at the end of the reporting perlod are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rates prevailing on the reporting date. Non-monetary items are translated
using the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction date, subsequently measured at historical cost
and not retranslated at period-end. '

All exchange differences on monetary items are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss except
any exchange differences on monetary items designated as an effective hedging instrument which are
recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through the statement of profit and loss) are added or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through the
statement of profit and loss are recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

(iy Financial Assets

The Company’s financial assets comprlse

a. Current financial assets mainly consist of trade receivables, investments in liquid mutual funds,
non-convertible debenture, cash and bank balances, fixed deposits with banks and financial
institutions and other current receivables. ’

b. Non-current financial assets mamly consist of fmanual investments in eqwty, bond and fixed
depOSIts non-current receivables from related party and employees and non-current deposits.
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MA~I‘THAN FERROUS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

» Recognition and Initial Measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset are added to fair value. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised lmmedlately in the Statement of
Profit and Loss,

> Subsequent Measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
e  Financial assets at Amortized Cost;
e  Financial assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI);
e  Financial assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL); and

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

o Financial assets at Amortized Cost: A ‘financial assets’ is measured at the amortized cost if both
the following conditions are met: '
¢ The asset is held. within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows; and ‘ ‘
e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost category is the most relevant to the Company. It comprises of
current financial assets such as trade receivables, cash and bank balances, fixed deposits with bank
and financial institutions, other current receivables and non-current financial assets such as
financial investments — fixed deposits. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (E{R) method. The EIR
amortisation is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising
from impairment, if any are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

o  Financial assets at FVOCI: A ‘financial assets’ is measured at the FVOCI if both of the following
conditions are met: V
e The objective of the business model is achieved by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets; and ’
e The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI on the principal amount outstanding

Debt instruments meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs.
They are subsequently measured at fair value with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognized in Other Comprehensive Income. However, the interest income, impairment losses &
reversals, and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other




MAITHAN FERROUS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

comprehensive income is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and loss. Interest
earned whilst holding fair value through other comprehensive income debt instrument is reported
as interest income using the EIR method.

For equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value in OCI. If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at
FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the
OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCl to the statement of profit and loss, even on
sale of investment, However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

o Financial assets at FVTPL: FVTPL is a residual category for. debt instruments. Any debt instrument,
which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified

) as FVTPL. ,

/} In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVOCI criteria, as at FVTPL, if such designation reduces or eliminates a
measurement or recognition inconsistency {referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with any gains
and losses arising on re-measurement are recoghized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

o Equity Instruments: Any equity investments instruments in the scope of Ind AS 109 “Financial
Instruments” are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS
103 applies are classified at cost.

For equity instruments which are classified as FVTPL, all subsequent fair value changes are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. :

» Financial Assets -derecognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset
in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred and the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated in other
equity is recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. ‘

» Impairment of Financial Assets
Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. ’




MAITHAN FERROUS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

In case of financial assets, the Company follows the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 —
Financial Instruments — for recognition of impairment loss allowance. The application of simplified
approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk of trade receivable. The
Company calculates the expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix on the
basis of its historical credit loss experience.

(ii) Financial Liabilities

» Recognition And Initial Measurement 4
The Company recognises a financial liability in its balance sheet when it becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of financial liabilities at amortised cost, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

» Subsequent Measurement
Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost or FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL .

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities desighated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
- liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the
near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company
that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. ‘

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.
These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to the statement of profit and loss. However, the
Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such
liability are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The Company has not designated any
financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Further, the provisionally priced trade payables are marked to markét using the relevant forward
prices for the future period specified in the contract and is adjusted in costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Borrowings and Trade and Other payables) ‘
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at

amortised cost using the EIR (Effective Rate Interest) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR (Effective Rate Interest)
amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in profit or loss.




MAITHAN FERROUS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

» Financial Liabilities- derecognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expireé. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

> Equity Instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

» Offsetting Financial Instruments : :
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Balance Sheet when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the counterparty.

(iii} Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company enters into forward contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in interest rates and
exchange rates. The Company does not hold derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.
. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period when they arise.. Derivatives are
carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value
is negative.

Inventories

Inventories are valued after providing for obsolescence, as follows:

Raw materials, stores and spare parts, fuel and packing material:

These are considered to be realisable at cost, if the finished products, in which they will be used, are
expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost is determined on weighted averei/ge basis and includes
purchase price, other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition,
and taxes for which ‘cred‘it is not available. However, materials and other items held for use in
production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will
be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

Work-in-progress, finished goods and stock in trade:
These are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value Net realizable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estlmated costs of completion and estimated costs
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necessary to make the sale. Cost of finished goods and Work-in-progress includes direct materials and
labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity, but
excluding borrowing costs. Cost of Stock-in-trade is determined on weighted average basis and
includes cost of purchase and other cost incurred in bringing the inventories in the present location
and condition.

Obsolete, defective, slow moving and unserviceable inventories, if any, are identified at the time of
physical verification and where necessary, they are duly provided for.

Revenue Recognition

(i) Revenue from Operation
Revenue from sale of product is reéognised at the point in time when control of the goods is
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the product.
At contract inception, the Company assess the goods promised in a contract with a customer and
identifies as a performance obligation of each promise to transfer to the customer. Revenue from
contracts with customers is recognized when control of goods is transferred to customers and the
Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold.
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

. Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction
price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price of
goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration and excluding taxes or duties
collected on behalf of the Government.

a. Sale of Goods ’

Sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred to the
customer. The revenue is measured on the basis of the consideration defined in the contract with a
customer, including variable consideration, such as discounts, volume rebates, or other contractual
reductions. As the period between the date on which the Company transfers the promised goods to
the customer and the date on which the customer pays for these goods is generally one year or less,
ho financing components are taken into account.

b. Sale of Servnces .
In contracts involving the rendering of services, revenue is measured using the completed service
method.

c. Other Operating Revenue

Export incentive and subsidies are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the Company
will comply with the conditions and the incentive will be received. Insurance & other claims, where
quantum of accruals cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty are recognised as income only
when revenue is virtually certain which generally coincides with receipt/acceptance.

(i} Other Income
a) Interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate method. For all financial

instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest
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rate (EIR), which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset.

b) Dividend Income is recognised only when the right to receive payment is established.

h. Employee Benefits
’a) Short-Term Benefits ‘
Short term employee benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end
of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognized as an expense at the
undiscounted amount in the statement of profit and loss of the period in which the related service is
rendered. ’
/3 Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after
‘ the end of the period in which the employees render the related service, are treated as short term
employee benefits. The Company measure the expected cost of such absences as the additional
amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlements that has accumulated at the
reporting date.

b) Defined Contribution Plans ‘

Employee benefits in the form of contribution Provident Fund managed by Government Authorities,
Employee State Insurance Corporation and Labour  Welfare Fund are considered as defined
contribution plans and the same are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period in which
the employee renders the related services,

¢) Defined Benefit Plans
The Company’s gratuity fund scheme and post-employment benefits scheme are considered as
‘} ~ defined benefit plans. The Company’s liability is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation using -
! the projected unit credit method as at the balance sheet date.
Past service costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss on the earlier of:
e The date of plan amendment or curtailment, and
e The date that the company recognizes related restructuring costs
The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit oblig‘a’gion. The Company recognizes the following changes in the statement of profit and loss:
e Service costs comprising current service costs, past service costs, gains and losses on
curfcailments and non-routine settlements; and
¢ Netinterest expense or income
Re-measurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of asset ceiling (if any), and the
return on the plan assets (excluding net interest), are recognized immédiately inthe balance sheet
with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they
occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss in subsequent
periods.
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Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax and includes any adjustments
related to past periods in current and/or deferred tax adjustments that may become necessary due
to certain developments or reviews during the relevant period. Tax is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in Equity or Other
Comprehensive Income. '

a) Current Tax ;

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and the tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Interest expenses and penalties, if any, related to income
tax are included in finance cost and other expenses respectively. Interest Income, if any, related to
income tax is included in other income.

Current tax relating to the items recognized outside the statement of profit and loss is recognized in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in other equity. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable

" tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis.

b} Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on all temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the Company’s financial statements except when the deferred tax arises
from the initial recognition of goodwill or initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and affects neither the accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time
of transaction. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws} that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the deductible temporary difference, the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and is adjusted to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be recovered.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities, and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when the same
relate to items that are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in Equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax relating to such items are also recognised in Other Comprehensive
Income or directly in Equity respectively.

j. Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per Effective Interest Rate. (EIR), amortisation of
discounts, hedge related cost incurred in connection with foreign currency borrowings, ancillary costs
incurred in connection with borrowing of funds and exchange difference, arising from foreign currency
‘) borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. Borrowing costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use. Borrowing costs relating to the construction phase of a service concession arrangement is
capitalised as part of the cost of the intangible asset.
Where surplus funds are available out of money borrowed specifically to finance a project are invested
temporarily and the money generated from such current investments is deducted from the total
borrowing cost to be capitalised. If any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related asset
is ready for its intended use or sale, that borrowing then becomes part of general borrowing. Where
the funds used to finance a project form part of general borrowings, the amount capitalised is
calculated using a weighted average of rates applicable to relevant general borrowings of the
Company during the year. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to profit and
loss during the extended periods when the active development on the qualifying assets is interrupted.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use. All other borrowing costs are recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss
in the period in which they are incurred. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial liability or a shorter period, where
\); appropriate, to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate,
the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options).

k. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, cash at banks fixed deposits and short—term highly
liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less.
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalent includes cash

on hand, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash, cash at bank and bank overdraft which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities
in the Balance Sheet. '

.  Cash Flow Statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects

wﬂo(jtransactlons of anon-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts
AoBnUAD
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or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The
cash flows are segregated into operating, investing and financing activities.

. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions , . :

Provisions represent liabilities for which the amount or timing is uncertain. Provisions are
recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive), as a result of
a past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle such
an obligation and the amount can be estimated reliably. If the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market

. assessments of the time value.of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the

liability. Unwinding of the discount is recognized in statement of profit and loss as a finance
cost. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate.

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities are possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events is not recognized because
it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. Contingent
Liabilities are not recognized but disclosed in the financial statements when the possibility of an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is more.

Contingent Assets

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the
recognition of income that may never be realised. However, when the realization of income is virtually
certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised.:

Earnings per share _ ,

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all
periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of
potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without
a corresponding change in resources. Partly paldup shares are included as fully paid
equivalents according to the fractlon paid- up

Diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing the profit after tax as adjusted for
dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes)
relating to the dilutive potential equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share
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and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares .

Dividends

Dividends paid are recognised in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Board of -
Directors, or in respect of the final dividend when approved by shareholders and is recognised directly
in other equity. ‘

Segment Reporting

. Operating segment is reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to Chief

Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in
conformity with the accounting policies adopted for the Company. Inter-segment revenues have been
accounted for based on prices normally negotiated between the segments with reference to the costs,
market prices and business risks, within an overall optimization objective for the Company. Revenué '
and expenses are identified with segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities
of the segment. Revenue and expenses, which relate to the Company as a whole and are not allocable
to segments on a reasonable basis, will be included under "Unallocated/ Others®.
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(4) (i) _Property, Plant and Equipment

(Rs. In Lakhs)

y Freehold Factory Plant and Furniture Office .
Particulars Land Building Machinery | and Fixture | Equipment Vehicle Computers Total
Gross Carrying Value
As At 1 April 2023 168.20 - 14.52 - - - - 182,72
Additions 205.87 - 170.48 0.52 - - 3.24 379.91
Sale/Deduction 178.63 - - - - 178.63
As At 31 March 2024 195.24 - 185.00 0.52 - - 3.24 384.00
Additions 417.55 655.15 7,236.58 4.186 6.25 19.91 29.64 8,369.24
Sale/Deduction - - - - - - - -
As At 31 Mar 2025 612.79 655.15 7,421.58 4.68 6.25 19.91 32.88 8,753.24
Accumulated Depreciation
As At 1 April 2023 . - - 0.72 | - - - - 0.72
Charge for the year - - 537 0.02 - - 0.21 5.60
Sale/Deduction - - - - - - - -
As At 31 March 2024 - - 6.09 0.02 - - 0.21 6.32
Charge for the year - 4.80 249.64 . 0.39 0.80 1.72 6.14 263.49
Sale/Deduction
As At 31 Mar 2025 - 4.80 255.73 0.41 0.80 1.72 6.35 269.81
Net Block
As At 31 Mar 2025 612.79 650.35 7,165.85 4.27 5.45 18.19 26.53 8,483.43
As At 31 March 2024 195.24 - 178.91 0.50 - - 3.03 377.68

(iiy The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant & Equipment during the Financial Year 2024-25,

!““*ﬁ{o indicator of impairment were identified during the current year, hence Property, Plant and Equipment including Capital work-in-Progress were not tested for

girment.

(8) Capital work in progress

Particulars Amount
As At 1 April 2023 98.56
Additions 5,396.24
Transfers -
As At 31 March 2024 5,494.80
Additions 2,579.34
Transfers 7,951.69
As At 31 Mar 2025 122.45
(5) (i} Ageing of Capital Work in Progress(CWIP) is a$ follows:
Amount in CWIP for a period of 31 March 2025
Particulars Less than 1 Total as at
year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years 31.03.2025
- 122.45
1. Projects in progress 122.45 - -
2. Projects temporarily suspended : - - - - -
TOTAL 122.45 - - - 122.45
Amount in CWIP for a period of 31 March 2024
Particulars Less than 1 R Total as at
“\S year 1-2 years 2-3 years More'than 3 years 31.03.2024
1. /0jects in progress 5,396.24 90.80 7.76 - 5,494.80
2. Projects tempeorarily suspended - - - - -]
TOTAL 5,896.24 90.80 7.76 - 5,494.80

Note-

(i) There is no Project/ Asset where actual cost of an ‘asset/project has already exceeded the estimated cost as per original plan or actual timelines for completion of an
asset/project have exceeded the estimated timelines as per original plan.
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(Rs. In Lakhs)

As At 31 March
2025

As At .31 March
2024

(6) Other Non-Current Finiancial Assets

Unsecured, Considered Good
Security Depaosits

0.18

0.18

0.18

0.18

‘(7) Non-Current Tax Asset (Net)

As At 31 March
2025

As At 31 March
2024

MAT Credit

152.23

152.23

(8) Others Non-Current Assets

As At 31 March
2025

As At 31 March
2024

Unsecured, Considered Good
Capital Advance

13.45

131,76

13.45

131.76

{9) Inventories

As At 31 March

As At 31 March

2025 2024
|Raw Materials 1,715.90 -
Raw Materidls in Transit 41.97 B
Work - In = Progress 39.19 -
Finished Goods 948.11 -
Stores and Spares Parts 57.62 -
{ﬁ 2,802.79 -
— 4

(10) Trade Receivables

As At 31 March
2025

As At 31 March
2024

Unsecured, Considered Good
Trade Receivables
Trade Receivables- which have credit impaired

Less: Allowance for Trade Receivables which have credit impaired

43.30

43.30

43.30

(i} Ageing of Qutstanding Trade Receivable and Credit Risk as on 31 March-2025 arising there from due date of payment

Particulars

Not due

Less than 6
months

6 months -1

year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Unbilled

Total

{i) Undisputed Trade receivables —considered good

43.30

43.30

{ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables —which have
significant incréase in credit risk

{ili) Undisputed Trade Receivables —credit impaired

{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables~considered good

(v} Disputed Trade Receivables — which have sigriificant
increase in credit risk

{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired

Tatal

43.30

43.30

Less: Allowance for credit impaired

Total Trade Receivable

43.30

43.30

(u) zeing of Qutstanding Trade Receivable and Credit Ri

isk as on 31 March

2024 arising there from due date of payment

5 Particulars

Not due

Less than 6

6 months - 1

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Unbilled

Total

. _4uted Trade receivables —considered good

{ii} Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk

{iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables —credit impaired

{iv) Disputed Trade Recejvables—considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables —which have significant
increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables —credit impaired

Total

Less: Allowance for credit impaired

Total Trade Receivable

(11) Cash and Cash Equivalents

As At 31 March

As At 31 March

2025 2024
Cash on Hand 587 423
Balance with BanksIn Current Account 3.98 26.06
Bank Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months - 200.00
9.85 230,29

(12) Other Bank Balances

As At 31 March

As At 31 March

2025 2024
Bank Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months and up to 12 months - 8.84
..... - 8.84
i
- As At 31 March As At 31-March
(1}) O;th/w Trren F.l\z’a' a\l Assets 2025 2024
I
h ter st I/%ccr d on lee ﬁépaslts - 0.46
7‘« O
~ * - 0.46
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(Rs. In Lakhs]
y As At 31 March As At 31 March
(14) Other Current Assets 2025 2024
Advance Paid to Suppliers 0.32 =
Balance With Statutory / Government Authorities 756,65 1,017.67
Prepaid Expenses 2,60 0.43
759.57 1,018.10

(15) Share Capital

(Rs: In Lakhs)

As At 31 March 2025

As At 31 March 2024

) Particulars Nos. Amount Nos. Amount
Authorised Share Capijtal '
Equity Shares of Rs, 10/- each 5,000,000 500.00 5,000,000 500.00
1% Non-Cummulative, Non-Convertible Preference Share (NCPS) of Rs. 10/- each 756,000,000 7,500.00 75,000,000 7,500.00
Issued Share Capital
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 5,000,000 500.00 | 5,000,000 500.00
1% Non-Cummulative, Non-Convertible Preference Share (NCPS) of Rs. 10/- each 75.000,000 7.500.00 75,000,000 7,500.00
Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each 5,000,000 500.00 5,000,000 | 500.00
1% Nen-Cummulative, Non-Convertible: Preference Share (NCPS) of Rs. 10/- each 75,000,000 7,500.00 65,000,000 | ° 6,500.00

a)Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attached to Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of equity share havirg a face value of Rs. 10/~ per share with one vote per equity share. The dividend if any proposed by board of directors is subject to approval of the

shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting, except in case of interim.dividend. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the

Cor \“'5#! after settling of all outside liabilities, The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

b)Shares held by Holding Company

As At 31 March 2025

As At 31 March 2024

Name of Sharsholders Nos. %.of holding Nos. % of holding
Equity Shares ’ .
Maithan Alloys Ltd.* 4,000,000 80% 4,000,000 80%

* Inoluding 06 Shares held by jts Nominees.

c)Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of Shareholders

As At 31 March 2025

As At 31 March 2024

Nos. % of holding Nos, % of holding
Equity Shares :
Maithan Alloys Ltd.* 4,000,000 80% 4,000,000 80%
Fantasy Vinimay Private Limited 350,000 | 7% 350,000 7%
Prism Vanijya Private Limited 400,000 8% 400,000 8%
4,750,000 95% 4,750,000 95%

* Including 06 Shares held by its Nominees,

d) Equity Shares Holding Of Promoters

As At 31 March 2025

% Change during the Year

Sl No. Promoter Name No. of Shares % of Total Shares
4,000,000 80% 0%

1 Maithan Alloys Ltd.*
4,000,000 80% 0%

*Including 06 Shares held by its Nominees.
&

. i <\ ),
As | ,51 March 2024

% Change during the Year

8l. No. Promoter Name No. of Shares % of Total Shares
1 Maithan Alloys Ltd * 4,000,800 80% 0%
4,000,000 80% 0%

* Including 06 Shares held by its Nominess.

(15.1) As per records of the company, inciuding its register of shareholders/imembers and other declaration received from shareholders regarding bereficial interest, thé above shareholding represent both legal

and beneficial ownership.

(16) ‘Other Equity

Particulars . As At 31 March As At 31 March
2025 2024
Retained Earnings
Opening Balance {29.35) {29.35)
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the' year 353.76 0.00
Add: Other Comprehensive Income for the year - -
Closing Balance 324.41 (29.35)
Equity Companent of Preference share
Opening Balance - -
Add During the Year 3,687.38 -
Closing Balance 3,687.38 -
[Total 4,011.79 | {29.35)]
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¥

(Rs. In Lakhs)

{17) Borrowings - Non Current

As At 31 March

As At 31 March

2025 2024
Preference share capital 4,251.99 6,500.00
6,500.00

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
The Company has ane classes of Preference Shares:

4,251.99

i) Series -A : 4,00,00,000 1% Non-Cummulative, Non-Convertible Preference Share (NCPS) of Rs, 10/- each which are redeemable at par at any time at option of the company but not later than ten years from
the date of allotment i, 29.3,2023. The NCP$ shall carry the voting right as prescribed under the provision of Companies Act 2013.

ii) Series -B :2,50,00,000 1% Non-Cummulative, Non-Convertible Preference Share (NCPS) of Rs. 10/~ each which are redeemable at par at any time at option of the company-but not later than ten years from
the date of allotment i, 08.1,2024. The NCPS$ shall carry the voting right as prescribed under the provision of Companies Act 2013,

ii) Series -C -

the date of allotment i,e 16,4.2024. The NCPS shall carry the voting right as prescribed under the provision of Compan[es Act 2013.

1,00,00,000 1% Non-Cummulative, Non-Convertible Preference Share (NCPS) of Rs. 10/- each which are redeemabile at par at any time at optlon of the company but not later than ten years from

(18) Provisions - Non Current

As At 31 March
2025

As At 31 March
2024

For Employee Benefits

€.83

6.83

(19) Deferred Tax Liabilities

As At 31 March
2025

As At 31 March
2024

Deferred Tax Liabilities
- Property, Plant and Equipment

301.57

3.64

301.57

3.64

=9

(20) Borrowings Current

As At 31 March

As At 31 March

2025 2024
Working Capital Loan from Banks (Secured) - Loan repayable on demand
-~ Rupee Loan N 1,489.63 -
’ ° 1,489.63 -

(/) Working Capital loans repayable on demand are secured by first charge and hypothecatiori of raw materials, work in progress, finished goods, stores and consumables, receivables, bills etc. These are

further secured by first pari-pasu charged basis on moveable and immoveable property, plant and equipment both present and future of the company.

(i) Acompany has not teclared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender.
(iiiy The Company has filed quarterly returns or statements with the banks in liett of the sanctioned waorking capital facilities, which are in agreement with the books of account other than those as set out below.

Amount
. o disclosed as |
Nartie of the Bank Aggregate workl_ng capital limits Quarterended| per quarterly Amount as per Diff Reason
sanctioned ] books of account .
return /
statéments
2000 Sep-24 1,807.65 1,360.79 5314 (The Difference is due to exclusion of
related party debtors, goods in transit and
ICICI BANK 2000 Dec-24 2,807.43 | 3,253.62 346,19 |@djustment of debit/ credit notes of
| provisional prices which are not considered
2000 Mar-25 2,686.81 2,846,090 4072 in statgments submitted to Banks.
As At 31 March As At 31 March
{21 Trade payables , 2025 2024
Cri )
(i) Tw.rOutstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (MSME) 99.23 -
(i) Total outstanding other than above 1,617.58 1.50
) 1,616.81 1.50
(i) Ageing of outstanding Trade Payable as an 31 March 2025 from the Due Date of Payment
Particulars Out: ling for following periods from due date of payments *
Not Due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2.- 3 years More than 3 years Total
Undisputed dues - MSME - ] 99.23 - - - 99.23
Undisputed dues - Others 723.28 794.30 - - - 1,517.58
Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
Disputéd dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 723.28 893.53 - - - 1,616.81
(i) Ageing of outstanding Trade Payablé as on 31 March 2024 from the Due Date of Payment
) Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments
Particulars - -
Not Due Less than 1 yedr 1-2 years 2 -3 years, More than 3 years Total

Undisputed dues - MSME

Undisputed dues - Others 1.50 - . - - - 1.50
Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
Disputed dues - Others . - . - N -
Total 1.50 E - - - 1.50
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{iii} Information as required to be furnished as per section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {MSMED Act) for the year ended 31 March 2025 and year ended 31 March 2024 is given below. This
information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basjs of information available with the Company. The disclosures relating to Micro and Small Enterprises are as under;

Particulars As At 31 March 2025 | As At 31 March 2024
(a) The amounts remaining unpaid to micre and small suppliers ds at the erid of each accounting year:
-Principal 99.23 =
-Interest - B

(b) The ahount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {27 of 2006}, along with the amount of the
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006.

{c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the |

(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year.

{e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the iriterest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise,
for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

(22) Other Current Financial Liabilities

As At 31 March

As At 31 March

2025 2024
Creditors for Capital Goods 42.35 237.55
Others Liabilities
- Employee Dues 22.37 0.24
- Liability for Expenses 6.57 40.53
71.29 278.32

(23) Provisions - Current

As At 31 March
2025

As At 31 March
2024

For Employee Benefits

'l

0.18

0.18

L

(24) Other Current Liabilities

As At 31 March

As At 31 March

2025 2024
Other Liabilities
‘-Statutory Dues 12,02 210
12.02 210
{25) Cuirrent Tax Liabilities As Atzﬁls""a"’h As A‘2312 4""3“’“
Provision for Tax (Net of Advance Tax.) 125.14 5.90
125,14 5.90
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(Rs. In Lakhs)

(26) Revenue from operations

Year Ended 31

Year Ended 31

~ March 2025 March 2024
Sale of Products
Manufactirng Goods
-Silico Manganese 14,726.28 -
Traded Goods
- Others | 8.54 5.43
: 14,734.82 5.43

(27) Other Income

Year Ended 31

Year Ended 31

March 2025 March 2024
Interest income on Fixed Deposit 4.80 " 105.61 |
{Interest on Income Tax Refund - 0.01
Net Gain on Foreign Currency Transactions 4.03 -
Custom Duty Drawback 0.97 -]
Profit on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment - 3.10
9.80 108.72 |

| (28) Cost of Material Consumed

Year Ended 31

Year Ended 31

March 2025 March 2024

'Opening Stock - -
|Add: Purchases 11,485.17 -
' 11,485.17 -

Less: Closing Stock 1,773.52 -

Less: Sale of Raw Material - -

Raw Material Consumed 9,711.65 -

(29) Purchase of Traded Goods

Year Ended 31

Year Ended 31

March 2025 March 2024
Purchase of Traded Goods
- Others 17.98 4.56
17.98 4.56

Year Ended 31

Year Ended 31

(30) Changes in Inventories of Fihished Goods and Work in Progress ‘March 2025 March 2024
Stock at the end of the year
Finished Goods 948.11 -
Work-In-Progress 39.19 -
987.30 -
Stock at the beginning of the year
Finished Goods - -
Work-In-Progress - - -
{Increase) / Decrease in stock of
(948.11) -
(39.19)} -

(987.30)
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(Rs. In Lakhs)

; . Year Ended 31 Year Ended 31
(31) Employee Benefits Expense March 2025 March 2024
Salaries & Wages 139.59 7.43
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 13.74 -
Staff Welfare Expenses 12.81 -
166.14 7.43

(32) Power Cost

Year Ended 31
March 2025

Year Ended 31
March 2024

Electricity Charges

4,255.32

4,255.32

(33) Finance Cost

Year Ended 31

Year Ended 31

March 2025 March 2024
Interest on Preference Borrowings 162.19 40.41
Interest on Working Capital Loan from Bank (Measured at Amortised Cost) 30.20 -
192.38 40.41
| (34) Depreciation and amortisation Expenses Y:nzrrf: 232531 Yl?llzrrfl? célgg 431
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 263.49 5.59
263.49 5.59
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Year Ended 31

Year Ended 31

| (35) Other Expenses March 2025 March 2024
Bank Charges & Commission 19.18 0.26
Brokerage and Commission 10.83 -
Consumption of Stores and Packing Material 91.81 0.44
Carriage outward 1.12 -
Other Manufacturing Expenses 240.57
{Export Expenses 4.36 | -
Filing Fees 16.98 19.26
Repairs to Machinery 58.21 2.09
Repairs to Others 0.08 | -
Rates & Taxes 0.24 0.03
Professional charges 1.78 0.47
Printing & Stationery Expenses 1.26 0.24
Interest On Statutory Dues 0.:32 -
Insurance charges 3.05 -
Auditors Remuneration ‘

-~ Statutory Audit Fee 2.75 1.50

- Tax Audit Fee 0.50 | - -

- Other Services - 0.10
Miscellaneous Expenses 23.43 0.56

476.46 24.95

.(36) Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Year Ended 31-

Year Ended 31

_ March 2025 March 2024
i}y Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders ‘ 353.76 | 0.00
ii) Weighted average number of equity shares used as denominator for 5,000,000 5,000,000
calculating Basic EPS
iiiy Weighted average potential equity shares - -
iv) Total weighted average number of equity and Preference shares used as 5,000,000 5,000,000
denominator for calculating Diluted EPS
v) Basic Earnings Per Shares (Rs.) 7.08 0.00
vi) Diluted Earnings Per Share (Rs.) 7.08 0.00
vii) Face Value Per Equity Share (Rs.) 10 10
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(37) Tax Expenses

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Ao

SN . Year Ended 31 Year Ended 31
37.1 Amount Recognised in Profit or loss March 2025 March 2024
Current Tax:
Income Tax for the year 152.23 17.77
MAT credit Entitlement (152.23) -
Charge/(Credit) in respect of Current Tax for Earlier Years (3.19) -
Total Current Tax : (3.19) 17.77
Deferred Tax:
Origination and Reversal of Temporary Differences 297.93 13.44
Total Deferred Tax 297.93 13.44
Total Tax Expenses 294,74 31,21
37.2 Reconciliation of effective tax rate
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit asfollows:
Profit before tax 648.50 31.21
Income tax expense calculated @ 26% (2023-24: 26%) 168.61 8.11
Expenses disallowed 162.19 15.39
Effect of tax relating to expenses allowed on payment basis - -
Tax dueto Ind AS adjustments - -
Effect of income not taxable - -
[Tax at differential rate 84.89 -
MAT credit Entitlement (152.23)
Income tax relating to earlier years (3.19) -
Origination and Reversal of Temporary Differences 297.93 13.44
Other differences (263.46) {5.73)
Tax expenses 294,74 31.21
Effective Tax Rate 45.45% 99.99%

37.3 Movements in Deférred Tax Liabilities

The Company has accrued significant amounts of deferred tax. Significant companents of Deferred tax liabilities recognized in the Balance

Sheet are as follows:

|Particulars PropertY, Plant Business Loss Total
and Equipment

As At 1 April 2023 0.38 (10.18) {9.80)
Charged/ {Credited) to : ‘

- Profit or loss 3.26 10.18 13.44
As At 31 March 2024 3.64 - 3.64
Charged/ (Credited) to : ‘
- Profit or loss 297.93 | - 297.93
As At 31 March 2025 301.57 - 301.57
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38. Employee Benefit Obligations

(i) Defined Contribution Plans ' . :

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards
Provident and Pension Fund and Employee State Insurance (ESI) which are defined contribution plans. The Company has nao obligations
other than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss as they

accrue.
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Pa rti;;ulars , Year Ended 31 | Year Ended 31
March 2025 March 2024
The followings recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Contribution to Employee's State Insurance Corporation _ 2.37 -
Contribution to Employees Provident Fund 331] - -
(ii) Defined Benefit Plans
Particulars As At 31 March 2025 As At 31 March 2024
Current Non-Current Current No‘n—Current
Jleave Encashment 0.09 336 - -
Bratuity : 0.09 3.47 - -

The defined benefit plans expose the Group to anumber of actuarial risks as below:

(a) Interest Risk : A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability. However, this will be partially offset by an increase.in the

value of plan’s debt investments.

(b) Salary risk : The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As
- such, an increase in salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

(c) Longevity risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan

participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

(d) Inflation risk: Some of the Group’s Pension obligations are linked to inflation, and higher inflation will lead to higher liabilities although, in
most cases, caps on the level of inflationary increases are in place to protect the plan against extreme inflation.

(iii) Leave Encashment

The liabilities for leave encashment are not expected to be seitled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of the expected future payments to be made in respect of
setvices provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The benefits are discounted
using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of related obligation. Remeasurements
as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.

A. Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet

N
4 \}Particulars

As At 31 March| As At 31 March

. 2025 2024
Present Value of the Plan Liabilities ) , . 3.45 | -
Fair Value of Plan Assets - ) -
Net Liabilities / (Assets) ) 3.45 -

B. Change in defined benefit obligations

Year Ended 31| Year Ended 31

Parﬂculars March 2025 March 2024
As At 1 April . : . ‘ -
Current Service Cost 3.45 -

Net Interest - -
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss arising from changes in-
-~ Financial Assumptions - -
~ Demographic Assumptions - -
- Experience Adjustments - -
Immediate recognition of (gains)/ losses - other long term employee benefit plans - - -

Net impact on the Profit / Loss before tax 3.45 -
Curtailment Cost - -
Benefits Paid ‘ - -

. |As At.31 March 3.45 -




MAITHAN FERROUS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

C. Expense/(gain) recognised in the statement of profit and loss account

iculars | Year Ended 31| Year Ended 31
Particulars March 2025 | March 2024
Current service cost 3.45 -
Net Interest - -
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss arising from changes in-

- Financial Assumptions - -
- Demographic Assumptions - -
- Experignce Adjustments - -
Expensel(gain) recognised in the 'statement of profit and loss 3.45 -

D. Actuarial Assumptions

Financial Assumptions

Parti As At 31 March| As At 31 March
articulars 2025 2024
Discount Rate (%) 6.96% 0.00%
Attrition Rate (%) 1.00% 0.00%
JSalary Escalation Rate 6.00% 0.00%

“Demographic Assumptions

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set in accordance with the published rate under Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-

14)
E. Sensitivity

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation (DBO) to changes in the weighted key assumptions are:

Year Ended 31 March 2025 Year Ended 31 March 2024

. Change in] Impacton Impact on . Impact on DBO| Impact on DBO
Particulars

feua assumptio | DBO ifrate | DBO if rate Changelm if rate if rate

. ., assumption . .
n increases decreases increases decreases

Discount Rate 0.50% 3.17 3.73 0.00% - -
Salary Escalation Rate 0.50% 3.73 3.17 0.00% - -

The above sensitivity analysis have been determiined based on reasonable possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the
end of the year and may not be representative of the actual change. It is based on a change in the key assumption while holding all other
assumptions constant. When calculating the sensitivity to the assumption, the same method is used to calculate the liability recognised in the
Standalone Balance Sheet. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the

previous year.

F. Maturity

. The defined benefit obligations shall mature as follows:

" (artioalars As At 31 March | As At 31 March

2025 2024

Year 1 0.09 -
Year 2 0.08 -
Year 3 0.03 -
Year 4 0.25 -
Year 5 0.03 -
Thereafter 12.79 -
The weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation 11 Years 11 Years
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38. Employee Benefit Obligations

(iv) Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service
for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirementitermination is the employees last drawn basic

salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service.

A. Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet

(Rs. In Lakhs)

|Particulars

As at 31 March
2025

As At 31 March
2024

Present Value of the Defined Benefit Obligation
Fair Value of Plan Assets
Net Liabilities / (Assets)

3.56

3.56

B. Change in defined benefit obligations

Particulars

As at 31 March
2025

As At 31 March
2024

As At 1 April
Current Service Cost
Jnterest Expense/ (Income)

‘INet impact on Profit Before Tax

‘Actuarial (Gain)/l.oss afising from changes in-

- Financial Assumptions

- Demographic Assumptions

- Experience Adjustments

Net Gain recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Curtailment Cost

Benefits Paid

As At 31 March

3.56

3.56

C_. Expense/(gain) recognised in the statement of profit and loss account

Particulars

As at 31 March
2025

As At 31 March
2024

Expensel(gain) recognised in the statement of profit and loss
Current service cost '
Net Interest

Expense/(gain) recognised in the Other comprehensive income

. |Actuarial (Gain)/Loss arising from changes in-

- Financial Assumptions

- Demographic Assumptions

- Experience Adjustments

3.56

3.56

D. Actuatrial Assumptions

Financial Assumptions

Particulars' As at 31 March | As At 31 March
2025 2024
Discount Rate (%) 6.96% 0.00%
Attrition Rate (%) 1.00% 0.00%,
Salary Escalation Rate 6.00% 0.00%

Demographic Assumptions

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set in accordance with the published rate under Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14)
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E. Sensitivity

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation (DBO) to changes in the weighted key assumptions are:
’ As at 31 March 2025

As At 31 March 2024

Change in

Impact on

Impact on

Impact on DBO

Particul in | i
artieulars assumptio| DBOifrate | DBO if rate Change_ln Impac_t on. DEQ if if rate
X assumption rate increases
n increases decreases | decreases
\Discount Rate 0.50% 3.29 3.88 0.50% - -
Salary Escalation Rate ) 0.50% 3.88 3.28 0.50% - -

The above sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonable possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the

end of the year and may not be representative of the actual change. It is based on a change in the key assumption while holding all other
assumptions constant, When calculating the sensitivity to the assumption, the same method is used to calculate the liability recognised in the
Standalone Balance Sheet. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the

previous year.

F. Maturity

The defined bengfit obligations shall mature as follows:

|Particutars As at 31 March | As At 31 March
2025 2024

Lyear 1 0,10 -
Year 2 0.11 -

TYears 0.02 -
Year 4 0.24 -
Year 5 0.02 -
Thereafter 13.79 -
The weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation 11 Years 11 Years

v
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(39) Financial Risk Management

The Company has a system-based approach to risk management, anchored to policies and procedures and internal financial controls
aimed at ensuring early identification, evaluation and management of key financial risks (such as market risk and liquidity risk) that may
arise as a consequence of its business operations as well as its investing and financing activities.

Accordingly, the Company’s risk management framework has the objective of ensuring that such risks are managed within acceptable
and approved risk parameters in a disciplined and consistent manner and in compliance with applicable regulation. It also seeks to drive
accountability in this regard.

The Company's financial liabilities includes other financial liabilities. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to. finance the
Company's operations. The Company's principal financial assets include Cash and Cash Equivalents.

Risk ' Exposure arising from ' Measurement Management
Market Risk — , Volatility in raw material prices significantly impacts|Commodity price|Mitigated this risk by well integrated
Commodily Price the input costs tracking . business model
Market Risk — Inferest Borrowings at floating interest rates Sensitivity analysis  |Exposure to floating interest rate debt
Rate ' . is only to the extent of Working Capital
Liquidity Risk Financial liabiliies that are settled by delivering|Cash flow forecasts |Projecting cash flows and considering
] Cash or another Financial Assét. the level of liquid assets necessary toj
meet the liabilities

The Board of Directors reviewed policies for managing each of these risks which are summatised below:-

(a) Market Risk

(i) Commodity Price Risk

Alloy industry being cyclical in nature, realisations gets adversely affected during downturn. Higher input prices or higher production than
the demand ultimately affects the profitability. The Company has mitigated this risk by'well integrated business model.

- {il} Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Company's exposure to'the risk of changes in.the market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's borrowings
obligations with floating interest rates. The borrowings of the Company dre pnnmpally denominated in Indian Rupees linked to MCLR with
floating rates of interest.

The Company invests surplus funds in Short-Term Deposits and Mutual Funds, some of which generate a tax-free return, to achieve the
Company’s goal of maintaining liquidity, carrying manageable risk and achieving satisfactory returns.

The exposure of the Company's Financial Liabilities to interest rate risk is as follows: (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particul'fars As At21’6122narch As Atz?glzzllarch
Rupee Borrowings (Floating Rate) ' (1,489.63 -
Total 1,489.63 -
Sensitivity

Profit or [oss is sensitive to higher/ lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates as below;

Impact on Profit Before Tax
Particulars : ‘ Impact on Profit | Impact on Profit
Before Tax Before Tax
Interest expense rates — increase by 50 basis points (P.Y. 2024; 50 bps)* (7.45) -
Interest expense rates — decrease by 50 basis points (P.Y. 2024: 50 bps)* 7.45 -

(b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settied by
delivering cash or another financial asset.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due. Due to the nature of the underlying business, the Company
maintains sufficient cash and liquid investments available to meet its obligation.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position (comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities below) and cash
and cash equivalents on the basis of expected.cash flows. The management also considers the cash flows projection and level of liquid
assets necessary to meet these on a regular basis.
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(i) Financing Arrangements

The Company had access fo the following undrawn funding facilities at the end of the reporting period:

Particulars As At 31 March | As At 31 March
bl 2025 2024
‘Expiring within one year (bank overdraft and other facilities) 510.37 -
510.37 -

The bank overdraft facilities may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without notice. Subject to the continuance of

. satisfactory credit ratings, the bank loan facilities in INR may be drawn at any time. .

The Company remains committed to maintaining a healthy liquidity, gearing ratio, deleveraging and strengthening the financial position.
The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on the remaining period from the date of Balance Sheet fo the contractual
maturity date is given in the table below. The figures reflect the contractual undiscounted cash obligation of the Company.

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Less’than 1 |Between1and| Between2and5 > 5 years Total

year 2 years years
As At 31 March 2025
‘Trade payables 1,616.81 - - - 1,616.81
Borrowings 1,489.63 - - ' 4,251.99 574162
Other Financial Liabilities 71.29 - s - - 71.29
Total . 3,477.73 - - 4,251.99 7,429.72
As At-31 March 2024 .
Trade payables 1.50 - - - 1,60
Borrowings - - - 6,500.00 6,500.00
Other Financial Liabilities 278.32 : - - - | 278,32
Total 279.82 - - 6,500.00 6,779.82

(40) Capital Management

The Company’s ebjectives when managing capital is to safeguard continuity, maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in
order to support its business and provide adequate return to shareholders through continuing growth. The Company’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from previous year. :
The Company's capital management is intended to create value for shareholders by facilitating the meeting of long-term and short-term
goals of the Company. The Company sets the amount of capital required on the basis of annual busmess and long-term operatlng plans
which include capital and cther strategic investments.

Thie funding requirements are met through a mixture of equity, internal fund generation and other non-current borrowings. The Company's

policy is to use current and non-current borrowings to meet anticipated funding requirements.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio which is net debt divided by total capital (equity plus net debt) . The
Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Net Debt to Equity at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

Particulars As At 31 March | As At 31 March
2025 2024
Long-Term Borrowings 4,251.99 6,500.00
Short-Term Borrowings 1,489.63 -
Total Borrowings (a) 5,741.62 6,500,00
Less:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 9.85 230.29
Other bank balances - 8.84
Total Cash (b) 9.85 239.18
Net Debt (surplus) (c = a-b) 5,731.77 6,260.87
Equity Share Capital ' 500.00 500,00
Other Equity 4,011.79 (29.35)
Total Equity (as per Balance Sheet) (d) 4,511.79 470.65
Total Capital (e = ¢ +d) 10,243.56 6,731.52
Net Debt to Equity (cle) 0.56 0.93

Dividends Proposed

Particulars

As At 31 March
2025

As At 31 March
2024

1The proposed dividend is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general
‘meeting.

Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period
The Board of directors have recommended dividend -of ¥ 0.10.for the year ended 31 March 2025

{31 March 2024: % 0.00) per fully paid up preference shares of ¥ 10.00 each. 75.00 o
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(41) Disclosures on Financial Instruments

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which
fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.

The details of material accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and
the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial
liability and equity mstrument are disclosed in note 3 to the financial statements.

Categories of Financial Instruments

: ‘ As At 31 March| As At 31 March
Particulars Note 2025 2024
Financial Assets
a) Measured at Amortised Cost |

i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 9.85 230.29
ii) Other Bank Balances 12 - 8.84
iy Other Financial Assets 6&13 0.18 0.64

J iv)Trade Receivables . - 10 43.30 -
Total Financial Assets 53.33 239.77
Financial Liabilities
a) Measured at Amortised Cost
i) Trade payables 21 | 1,616.81 1.50
iy Borrowings 17 & 20 5,741.62 6,500.00
jii) Other Financial Liabilities ' 22 71.29 278.32
Total Financial Liabilities 7,429.72 6,779.82

() Fair Value Hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estlmates made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which
fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs
used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels
prescribed under the accounting standard.

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
; ()valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-
« “gpecific estimates. If all significant mputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.

(ii) Valuation Technique used to determine Fair Value

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

s the fair value of all assets and liabilities

+ the fair value of the financial instruments is dete'rmined, using discounted cash flow analysis.

The carrying amounts of all other financial assets and financial liabilities are considered to be the same as their
fair values, due to their short-term nature.

(iii) Significant Estimates

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation

techniques. The Company uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. For details of the key

assumptions used and the impact of changes to these assumptions see (ii) above.
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(42) Segment Reporting

The Company is primarily in the business of manufacturing of " Silico Manganese ". Revenue from other activities
is not material. Accordingly, there are no reportable business segments as per Ind AS 108.

Additional information:

(i)  Geographical Information

(Rs. In Lakhs)

. 1 |Revenue from External Customers

Year Ended 31

Year Ended 31

March 2025 March 2024
- Within India 14,639.94 5.43
- Outside India 94.88 -
Total 14,734.82 5.43

2 |Non-Current Assets

As At 31 March

As At 31 March

2025 2024
- Within India 8,771.74 6,004.42
-+ - Outside India - -
fﬁ Total 8,771.74 6,004.42

(43) Assets Pledged as Security

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for borrowings are:

Particulars

As At 31 March

As At 31 March

| 2025 2024

First Charge

Current

Trade Receivables 43.30 -

Inventories 2,802.79 -

‘ 2,846.09 -

Non-Current

Property, Plant and Equipment 8,483.43 377.68
8,483.43 '377.68

11,329.52

|Total Assets Pledged as Security

377.68
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~(44) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

In the ordinary course of business,-the Company faces claims and assertions by various parties. The
Company assesses such claims and assertions and monitors the legal environment on an ongoing basis,
with the assistance of external legal counsel, wherever necessary. The Company records a liability for
any claims where a potential loss is probable and capable of being estimated and discloses such matters
in its financial statements, if material. For potential losses that are considered possible but not probable,
the Company provides disclosure in the financial statements but does not record a liability in its accounts
unless the loss becomes probable.

The following is a description of claims and assertions where a potential loss is possible, but not
probable. The Company believes that none of the contingencies described below would have a material
adverse effect on the Company's financial condition, results of operations or cash flow.

(i) Contingent Liabilities: . (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As At 31 March|As At 31 March
2025 2024

a) Claims against the Company/ disputed liabilities
not acknowledged as debt

The amounts shown above represent the possible estimates arrived at on the basis of available
information. The uncertainties and timing of the cash flows are dependent on the outcome of different
legal processes which have been invoked by the Company or the claimants, as the case may be and,
therefore, cannot be estimated accurately. The Company does not expect any reimbursement in respect
of above contingent liabilities.

In the opinion of the management, no provision is considered necessary for the disputes mentioned
above on the ground that there are fair chances of successful outcome of the appeals.

(i) Commitments:

As At 31 March|As At 31 March

Particulars 2025 2024

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be

executed on capital commitments 13.45 131.76
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(45) Financial Ratios

The ratios as per the latest amendment to Schedule Iil are as belows:

Reason for Variance for

Sl No. Ratios As At 31 March 2025] As At 31 March 2024 % Variance
above 25%

(1) |Current ratio (in times)
{Total ctirrent assets/Total Current liabilities) 1.09 4,37 -75.04% a

(2) |Net debt equity ratio (in times)
(Total debt/Shareholders equity)

~ o

Total debt = short term borrowings + lorg term borrowings 127 ) 13.30 90.45% a
(3) |Debt service coverage ratio (in times)

{Earning for Debt Service.= Net Profit after taxes+ Non-cash operating expenses like depreciation and .

{Earning for Deb . ; perating &xp P 0,14 ©01) -1484.20% a

other amortizationis + Interest + other adjustments like loss on sale of Fixed assets etc.) / g

(Debt service = Interest & Lease Payments + Principal Repayments)
(4} |Return on Equity (%)

(Profit-after tax {(PAT)/Average Shareholders Equity) 7.84% 0.00% 100.00% b
(5) [Inventory turnover ratio {in times)

10.51 - 100.00% b
(Sales / Average Inventory) |

(6) |Trade Receivables turnover ratio (in times)
{Net Sale/ Average Accounts Receivables) 680.59 - 100.00% b
[Net Sales = Revenué from operations]

(7) {Trade payables turnover ratio (in times)
(Net Purchases/Average Trade Payables) 3.55 - 100.00% c
Net Purchase = Gross credit purchase- purchase return] |

®)

Net capital turnover ratio (in times)

(Net Sales/ Working Capital)

‘\ . {Working capital: Current assets - Current liabilities]]
‘[Net Sales: Revenue from operations]

49,04 0.01 876647.24% b

(9) |Net profit ratio (%)
{Net profit after tax/ Sales) 2.40% 0.00% 100.00% b
[Sales: Revenue from opérations]

(10) {Return on Capital Employed {%)
(EBIT/ capital employed)

[EBIT = Profit Before Tax + Finance cost] 9.18% -0.58% ~1821.50% b
[Capital Employed = Tangible Net Worth + Total Debt + Deferred Tax Liability]

(11) |Return on investment {%)
{Interest income on fixed deposit + dividend income + profit on sale on investments carried at FVTPL+fair

. ) o N . y ) N 3 0.00% 1229.50% -100.00% d
valuation gain of investment carried at FVTPL) + fair valuation gain of investment carried at FVTOCI}/ )

(Current Investment + Non Current Investment + Other bank balances)

Sanction of Short Term Borrowirigs from Bapk in current Financial year.

Company has started its production i current Financial Year, due to which revenue from operation and Net profit increases.
Company has started its production in eurrent Finanicial Year, due to which purchase increases.

Fixed Deposit matured in the FY 2024-25

a
b
c
d
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(46) Related Party Disclosures

a) Name of the Related Parties and Description of Relationship:
Il - Holding Company
1 Maithan Alloys Lid.

Fellow Subsidiary Companies

1 Anjaney Minerals Ltd.
2  Salanpur Sinters Pvt. Ltd.
3 Ramagiri Renewable Energy Limited
4 Impex Metal and Ferro Alloys Ltd.
5  AXL Exploration Pyt. Ltd. ,
6 Dadhichi Rail & Defence Operations Ltd. (w.&.f. 20-07-2024)
7 Eloise Builders & Constructions Private Limited (w.e.f. 25-02-2025)
IV Key Managerial Personnel
1 Mr. Aditya Mishra Director and Chief Executive Officer
2 Mr. Pramod Kumar Chaudhary Chief Financial Officer
3 Mr. Subodh Agarwalla Nominee Director
4 Mr. Subhas Chandra Agarwalla Nominee Director
5 Mr. P.K. Venkatramani Independent and Non-Executive Director
«. 6 Mrs, Sonal Choubey Independent and Non-Executive Director (w.e.f. 10-08-2024)
j'\‘) 7 Mrs. Kalpana Biswas Kundu Independent and Non-Executive Director (till 16-07-2024)
8 Mr. Rajesh K. Shah Company Secretary
V  Key Managerial Personnel of Holding Company
1  Mr. 8. C. Agarwalla ’ Chairman and Managing. Director
2 Mr.-Subodh Agarwalla Whole-time Director and Chief Executive Officer
3 Mr. Srinivas Peddi . Non-Executive Director
4 Mr. Sudhanshu Agarwalla Chief Financial Officer
5 Mr. Nand Kishore Agarwal Independent and Non-Executive Director (tili 21.09.2024)
6 Mr. Vivek Kaul Independent and Non-Executive Director '
7  Mr. Naresh Kumar Jain . Independent .and Non-Executive Directar
8 - Mr. P.K. Venkatramani Independent and Non-Executive Director
-9 Mrs. Sonal Choubey Independent and Non-Executive Director
10 Mr. Aayush Khetawat Independent and Non-Executive Director (w.e.f 14.08.2024)
11 Mr. Rajesh K. Shah Company Secretary
VI Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel of Holding Company
1 Mrs. Sheela Devi Agarwalla Relative of Mr. 8. C. Agarwalla
2 Mrs. Mitu Agarwalla Relative of Mr. Subodh Agarwalla
"3 Mrs. Tripti Agarwalla Relative of Mr. Sudhanshu Agarwalla
4 Mr. Prahlad Rai Agarwalla ‘ Relative of Mr. 8. C. Agarwalla
VIl Enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnel (of Holding Company) are able to exercise significant influence
... 1 BMA Foundation .
: &} 2 Super Bright Textiles & Finance Pvt. Ltd

Subhas Chandra Agarwalla HUF (till 22-01-2025)

Vil Enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnel of the Company are able to exercise significant influence
1 - Aditya Mishra and ORS HUF

2 Fantasy Vinimay Pvt Ltd.
3 Prism Vanijya Pvt Ltd.
4  Shree Ambey Ispat Pvt. Ltd.
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b) Transactions during the year with related parties {Rs. In Lakhs)
sl. Transaction Balance

No. Types of Transactions 2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24

1 |Loan/Advance Received/(Repayment) ‘
[Maithan Alloys Ltd. - - - -
Aditya Mishra - . (0.45) - -

2 |lssue of Preference share
Maithan Alloys Limited o 800.00 2,000.00 - -
Aditya Mishra - - . - -
Aditya Mishra and ORS HUF - 25.00 ' Co- E
Anshuman Mishra - 130.00 - -
Aryaman Mishra - 135.00 - -
Fantasy Vinimay Pvt Lid. 100.00 - - -
Neetu Mishra - 15.00 - -
Prism Vanijya Pvt ltd. 100.00 165.00 - -

3 |Interest Received / (Repayment )
Maithan Alloys Limited | - - - -

4 |Purchase of Capital Goods |
Maithan Alloys Ltd. - 376.03 - -
‘ § Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Ltd. - 114.76 | - -
N Shree Ambey Ispat Pvt. Lid. - - - -

5 |Purchase of Land ' ‘ -
Anjaney Minerals Ltd. - 181.73 ~ -
Salanpur Sinters Pvt. Ltd. ' 363.55 -

6 [Sale of Land ) . -
Anjaney Minerals Ltd. - 181.73 - -

7 |Purchase of Material
Shree Ambey Ispat Pvt. Ltd. . 4.21 - - -
Maithan Alloys Ltd. 9,290.10 - 219.58 -

8 |Sale of Materials
Shree Ambey Ispat Pvt. Ltd. 0.58 - - -
Maithan Alloys Ltd. 10,386.80 5.43 33.67 -

9 |Advance Paid for Supply of Goods | ]
Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Ltd. - 15.00 - 15.00

10 |Advance Paid for Supply of Goods- Refunded ‘
Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Ltd. 15.00 - - -

. 11 [Reimbursement
o0 Pramod Kumar Chaudhary 0:63 ‘ - - -
- 3 Aditya Mishra 3.81 - - -
Shree Ambey Ispat Pvt. Ltd. 18.13 - - -

(47) Additional regulatory disclosures as per schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013
(i) No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Company for hoiding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder.

(i) There are no transactions with the Companies whose name are struck off under Section 248 of The Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of the
Companies Act, 1956 during the year ended 31st March 2025.

(i) All applicable cases where registration of charges or satisfaction is required to be filed with Registrar of Compames have been filed. No
registration or satisfaction is pending at.the year ended 31st March 2025,

(iv) The Company has comiplied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Restriction on humber of Layers) Rules, 2017.
(v) The Company has not advanced or loaned or |nvested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermedlanes) with
the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(&) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (ultimate
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiary
(vi) The Company has not operated in any crypto currency or Virtual Currency transactions.
(vity During the year the Company has not disclosed or surrendered, any income other than the income recoginsed in the books of accounts in the
tax assessments under Income Tax Act, 1961.




MAITHAN FERROUS PRIVATE LIMITED .
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{48) Company has commenced the commercial produiction from September 07, 2024 in its Ferro Alloy Plant at Barjora in Bankura District, West
Bengal.
(49) The previous year figures are reclassified where considered ngcessary to confirm to this year's classification.

The accompanying notes 1 to 49 are an integral part of the financial statements.
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